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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of
National Central Cooling Company PISC
Abu Dhabi, UAE

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements of National Central Cooling Company
PISC

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National Central Cooling Company PJSC (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016 and the consolidated statements of profit or loss,
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and its consolidated financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). OQur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Codes of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and with the requirements relevant to our audit in the United
Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. We have communicated the
key audit matters to the Audit Committee but they are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters
that were identified by our audit and that were discussed with the Committee. On the following pages,
we have described the key audit matters we identified and have included a summary of the audit
procedures we performed to address those matters.

The key audit matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Anis Sadek (521), Georges Najem (808), Mohammad Khamees Al Tah (717), Musa Ramah| (872), Mutasem Dajani (728), Rama
Padmanabha Acharya (701) and Samir Madbak (386) ara registered practicing auditors with the UAE Ministry of Economy.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, including goodwill

The Group has AED 3,845,225 thousand of
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in
Note 11 and intangible assets of AED 27,710
thousand as disclosed in Note 14 which
represents significant balances recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The evaluation of the recoverable amount of
these assets requires significant estimates as
disclosed in Note 2.5 in determining the key
assumptions supporting the expected future cash
flows of the business and the utilisation of the
relevant assets.

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

[

Engaged our internal technical specialists and
internal valuation specialists;

Evaluated whether the model wused by
management to calculate the value in use of each
CGU complies with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets;

Obtained and analysed the financial impairment
assessment provided by management for each
subject asset to determine whether they are
reasonable and supportable;

Analysed the discount rates and Weighted Average
Cost of Capital (WACC) calculated by management
to compare and verify management’s calculations;

Reviewed the reasonableness of growth rates;

Assessed the reasonableness of key cash flow
assumptions; and

Performed sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptions used by management to ascertain the
extent of change in those assumptions that either
individually or collectively would be required for an
additional impairment change.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Classification of plant asset as finance lease

During the year, the Company constructed a new
district cooling plant for an existing customer.
The Company signed a cooling agreement with
this customer for a contract period of 20 years.
Since, the Agreement transfers substantially all
the risk and rewards incidental to the ownership
of the specified plants to the customer,
Management has assessed and concluded that
the arrangement is a finance lease as disclosed in
Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
Due to the significant judgement involved, the
matter is considered to be a key audit matter,

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

Engaged our internal valuation specialists;

Reviewed the Agreement executed with the
customer to provide required cooling services;

Reviewed the requirements of |IFRIC 4,
“Determining whether an arrangement contains a
lease”;

Assessed the lease classification in  the
arrangement by reviewing the terms of the lease
and third party valuation report;

Analysed the implicit interest and discount rate
calculated by management;

Reviewed the calculation of minimum lease
payments;

Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
used in minimum lease payment calculations; and

Assessed the appropriateness of the gain
recognised upon the recognition of finance lease.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Provision for onerous contract

The Group has entered into contractual
arrangements where they are subject to
application of Consumer Price Index (CPI)
adjustment which can impact the profitability of
such arrangements. Management made an
assessment as to whether the impact of such
factors has resulted in contracts becoming
onerous.

Management performs an annual assessment of
the impact of CPI on such contracts and records a
pravision accordingly.

Management's disclosures with regards to
onerous provision are presented in notes 27 to
the  consolidated  financial  statements
respectively.

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

Tested the identification and completeness of
onerous contracts through discussions with
management, examination of board minutes,
obtaining and reading new significant contracts and
testing management’s assumptions for all contracts
where the cost exceeds the revenue to determine if
the contracts are onerous;

Tested the valuation of the onerous contract
provisions by evaluating whether appropriate
judgements and assumptions have been applied in
determining the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligation and the estimate of the expected
benefits to be received under the contract;

Performed audit procedures on the cash flow
model prepared by management to assess the
accuracy of the provision. We have reviewed and
challenged key assumptions used in developing the
model; and

Reviewed the pricing mechanism in contracts with
customer to further substantiate the input and
assumptions used in the cash flow model.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Other Information

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Board of Directors Report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, and the Key
Achievements of 2016, Overview of 2016 and the Corporate Governance Report, which are expected to
be made available to us after that date. The other information does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we will read the Key Achievements of 2016, Overview of 2016 and the Corporate Governance
Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we will be required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and consider whether a reportable
irregularity exists in terms of the auditing standards, which must be reported.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the applicable provisions
of the articles of association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, and for such
internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management:

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other matter
The Group's consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2015 were audited by another auditor
whose report dated 31 January 2016 expressed an unmodified audit opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that:

i.  we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii. the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects,
with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015;

iii. the Company has maintained proper books of account;

iv.  the financial information included in the report of the Board of Directors are consistent with the
books of account and records of the Company;

v. As disclosed in note 9 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has further
invested in a subsidiary and a joint venture during the financial year ended 31 December 2016;

vi.  note 28 reflects the disclosures relating to related party transactions and the terms under which
they were conducted; and

vii.  based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that the Group has contravened during the financial year ended
31 December 2016 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 or in
respect of the Company, its Memorandum and Articles of Association which would materially
affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2016.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)

GAREN

'____-_-.-_-_--_-I
Signed by:

Rama Padmanabha Acharya
Registration number 701
Abu Dhabi

29 January 2017



National Central Cooling Company PISC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Notes AED "000 AED ‘000
Revenue 3&4 1,279,853 1,204,008
Operating costs 4861 (681,979) (643,393)
GROSS PROFIT 597,874 560,615
Administrative and other expenses 6.2 (192,543) (177,918)
OPERATING PROFIT 405,331 382,697
Finance costs 5 (155,959) (138,987)
Finance income 394 1,438
Qther gains and losses 14,16,18 & 24 4,986 4,203
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 12&13 116,950 98,660
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 371,702 348,011
Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the parent 367,362 345,345
Non-controlling interests 4,340 2,666
371,702 348,011
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent (AED) 7 0.14 0.11

The attached notes 1 to 33 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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National Central Cooling Company PISC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2016
2016 2015
Notes AED 000 AED ‘000
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 371,702 348,011
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Board remuneration during the year 8 - (7,125)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Net movement in fair value of derivatives in cash flow hedges (390) 25,897
Share of changes in fair value of derivatives of an associate and a
Joint venture in cash flow hedges 12 & 13 2,958 (3,631)
Exchange differences arising on translation of overseas
operations (142) (15)
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2,426 15,126
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 374,128 363,137
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 369,788 360,471
Non-controlling interests 4,340 2,666
374,128 363,137

The attached notes 1 to 33 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2016
2016 2015
ASSETS Notes AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Non-current assets
Capital work in progress 10 117,775 304,723
Property, plant and equipment 11 3,845,225 3,498,466
Intangible assets 14 27,710 37,596
Investments in assaclates and joint ventures 12413 826,096 641,178
Loan to a joint venture 15&28 - 72,276
Finance lease receivables 16 2,782,567 2,736,692
7,599,373 7,290,931
Current assets
Inventories 32,026 37,813
Accounts receivable and prepayments 17 409,115 409,506
Finance lease receivables 16 230,918 226,404
Cash and term deposits 19 389,961 176,969
1,062,020 850,692
Disposal group and asset held for sale 18 - 91,201
—1062,020_ 941,893
TOTAL ASSETS 8,661,393 8,232,824
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Issued capital 20 738,490 738,490
Treasury sharas 21 (2,0186) (2,016)
Statutory reserve 22 234,092 197,356
Retained earnings BB8,361 720,667
Fareign currency transiation reserve (2,715) (2,573)
Cumulative changes in fair value of derivatives in cash flow hedges (29,551) (32,119)
Mandatery convertible bond - equity component 24 1,772,476 1,772,476
Other reserve 22 768,086 768,086
Equity attributable ta the equity holders of the parent 4,367,223 4,160,367
Nen - controlling Interests 70,868 65,399
Total equity 4,438,091 4,225,7&
Non-current liabilities
Accounts payable, accruals and provisions 27 133,110 128,546
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 23 2,887,187 2,808,286
Obligations under finance lease 25 3,979 10,320
Mandatary convertible bond- liability component 24 97,729 173,908
Employees’ end of service banefits 26 22,649 20,625
3,144,654 3,141,685
Current liabilities
Accaunts payable, accruals and provisions 27 643,663 568,001
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 23 342,712 189,021
Mandatary convertible bond- liability componant 24 84,909 84,909
Obligations under finance lease 25 7,364 7,364
1,078,648 849,295
Liabilities directly associated with the assets held for sale 18 - 16,078
1,078,648 B65,373
Total liabilities 4,223,302 4,007,058
TOTAL EQUITY AN BILITIES 8,661,393 8,232,824

Waleed! Al Mokafrathyal Muhairi lasim H. Thabet
Chalrmign Chief Executive Officer

The attached notes 1 to 33 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

y v

Stephen John Ridlington
Chief Financial Officer
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2016
2016 2015
Notes AED ‘000 AED ‘000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit for the year 371,702 348,011
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11 129,423 119,900
Impairment of goodwlll 9,886 -
Finance lease income 3&16 (185,587) (187,994)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 12&13 (116,950) (98,660)
Net movement in employees' end of service benefits 26 1,573 (452)
Other gains (38,297) (4,203)
Allowance for slow moving inventory 14,200 -
Interest income (394) (1,438)
Finance costs 5 155,959 138,987
Warking capital adjustments:
Inventories (2,534) (2,111)
Accounts recelvable and prepayments 10,800 79,675
Accounts payable, accruals and provisions (23,150) (9,728)
Lease rentals received 16 234,002 230,069
Board of Directors’ remuneration paid 8 (7,125) (7,125)
Net cash flows from operating activities 553,508 504,931
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Term deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months 15 - 252,674
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11 (132,598) (112,957)
Investments in a jeint venture 12&13 (91,837) -
Dividends from a Joint Venture 29,000 -
Dividends from associates 12 47,257 33,476
Payments for capital work in progress (63,053) (176,738)
Interest received 345 1,311
Proceed from disposal of assets held for sale 18 11,224 11,429
Net cash flows (used in)/ from investing activities (199,662) 9,195
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest bearing loans and borrowings received 23 455,540 1,035,274
Interest bearing loans and borrowings repaid (232,593) (209,668)
Repurchase of Mandatory Convertible Bonds 1B 24 - (1,000,000)
Cash coupon paid on mandatory convertible bonds 24 (86,444) (103,517)
Payment for obligations under finance lease (6,341) (5,762)
Interest paid (121,469) (108,688)
Arrangement fees paid {4,221) (12,629)
Additional capital by non-controlling parties 7,588 -
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders 8 (162,932) (173,684)
Dividends paid to non-contralling interests and Shareholders (6,459) (7,264)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (157,331) {585,938)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 196,515 28,188
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 193,446 165,258
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 19 389,961 193,446

Non-cash transactions are disclosed in note 28,

The attached notes 1 to 33 form part of these consolidated financial stataments.
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

National Central Cooling Company PJSC (“Tabreed” or the “Company”) is registered in the United Arab Emirates as
a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the UAE Federal Law No, (2) of 2015 and is listed on the Dubai Financial
Market. The Company is a subsidiary of the Mubadala Development Company PISC (“MDC” or the “Parent
Company”). The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are supply of chilled water,
operation and maintenance of plants, construction of secondary networks, manufacturing of pre-insulated pipes and
design and supervision consultancy. Activities of subsidiaries are described in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company’s registered office is located at P O Box 32444, Dubal, United Arab Emirates.

The Company amended its Articles of Association to comply with new UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 (“Companies
Law”) and best practice regulations issued by Securities and Commodities Authority. The first amendment was
approved by the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 2 March 2016. Subsequent to the year end,
Shareholders approved further amendments at a General Meeting held on 15th lanuary, 2017.

The Group has not made any social contributions during the year.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 29 January 2017.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consalidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared In accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”) and applicable
requirements of the laws in the UAE.

The consclidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis, except for derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements have been presented in United
Arab Emirates Dirham (“AED") which is the functional currency of the Group. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (AED ‘000) except when otherwise indicated,

22 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Tabreed and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) as at 31 December 2016. Control is achieved when the Group Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee,
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

® Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invalvement with the investee, and

. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting ar similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
. The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

13
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses the control. Assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to contral the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the nen-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Graup are eliminated in full on
consolidation,

Achange in the ownership Interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction,

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

23 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportianate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, econemic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for nan-controlling interests) and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assats acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. |f the
reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or lass.

After initlal recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether ather
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assignad to those units.
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goadwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. For supply of chilled water,
revenue comprises of available capacity and variable output provided to customers and is recognised when services
are provided.

The specific recognition eriteria described below must also be met befare revenue is recognised.
Rendering of services

Revenue from supervision contracts services is recognised as supervision services are rendered. Revenue in respect
of study and design contracts services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract, when:

1) itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Group;
2) the contract costs attributable to the contract can be reliably estimated; and
3) the Group is reasonably confident about the collection of the amount recognised.

Where the Group determines that an agreement with a customer contains a finance lease, capacity payments are
recognised as finance income using a rate of return to give constant periodic rate of return on the investment in
each year. Finance income on finance lease receivables is included in revenue due to its operating nature.

Interest income

Interest income including interest on finance lease receivable is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective
interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instruments to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Connection fees

Connection fees are recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the respective customer contracts unless it
represents a separately identifiable service and satisfies other criteria for upfront recognition to the consolidated
staternent of profit or loss.

Lease rental

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset to the
customers are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. Where the Group determines
that the cooling service agreements te contain an operating lease, capacity payments are recognised as operating
lease rentals on a systematic basis to the extent that capacity has been made available to the customers during the
year. Rental income arising from operating leases on chilled water plants is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the |lease terms and included in revenue due to jts operating nature.
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in AED, which is the parent Company’s functional and
presentation currency. The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an
entity operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of
consalidation and on disposal of a foreign aperation, the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the
amount that arises from using this method.

i) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet reporting date.

All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or lass with the exception of monetary items that
pravide an effective hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary Items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Nen-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on iterms whose
fair value gain or loss |s recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OC| or profit or loss, respectively).

ii) Group companies

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into AED at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet reporting date and their statement of profit of lass are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arlsing on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is recorded at cost incurred by the Group for the construction of the plants and distribution
netwark. Allocated costs directly attributable to the construction of the assets are capitalised. The capital work in
progress is transferred to the appropriate asset category and depreciated in accordance with the Group’s policies
when construction of the asset is completed and it is available for use.

16



|
[ ]l tabree

O

National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

23 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised
(net of interest income on temporary investment of borrowings) as part of the cost of the asset until the asset is
commissioned for use. Borrowing costs in respect of completed and suspended projects or not attributable to
qualifying assets are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

For partially operational plants and distribution assets, the Company ceases capitalising borrowing costs when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition
criteria are met. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost Is recognised in the carrying amount of the
property plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred. Land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as fallows:

Plant and related integrated assets over 30 years
Buildings over 50 years
Distribution assets over 50 years
Furniture and fixtures over 3 to 4 years
Office equipment and instruments over 3 to 4 years
Motar vehicles over 4 to 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The Group performs regular major overhauls of its district cooling plants. When each major overhaul is performed,
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. The cost recognised is depreciated over the period till the next planned major
overhaul,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when noe future econemic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the assat is derecognised.

17



National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 Decermber 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Group as lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability,
Finance charges are reflected in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consalidated statement of profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Group as lessor — Finance leases

Leases where the Group transfers substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset through its
contractual arrangements to the customer are considered as a finance lease. The amounts due from the lessee are
recorded in the statement of financial position as financial assets (finance lease receivables) and are carried at the
amount of the net investment in the lease after making provision for impairment.

Group s lessor — Operating leases
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not cantrol or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control s the contractually agreed sharing of contral of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group's investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount
of the investment Is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture
since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of
the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment. The statement of profit or loss
reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associates and joint ventures. Any change in other
comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of the Group's other comprehensive income.
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the assaciate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss outside operating profit. The financial statements of the associate or joint
venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group, When necessary, adjustments are made to bring
the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there
is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or
joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint cantrol over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upan loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assats

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure
is reflected in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditureis incurred. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future ecanomic benefits embodied in the asset
is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable, If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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National Central Cooling Company PISC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration is recognised in other capital reserves.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If na such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corrobarated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations cover a period to the end of useful life of the plants.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the assets’ or cash-generating units’ recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss Is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment, annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which
the goodwill is allocated. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is less than their carrying
amount an impairment |oss is recognised, Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods. The Company performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset,

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end.

Trade and settlement date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the
Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in four categories:

. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; The Group did not have any financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
. Loans and receivables; This category is the most relevant to the Group. Loans and receivables are non-

derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amaortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation relating to finance lease receivable is included under revenue. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
cast of sales or other operating expenses for receivables.

® Held-to-maturity investments; The Group did not have any held-to-maturity investments during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
= Available-for-sale (AFS) investments; The Group did not have any available-for-sale investments during the

years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement: and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment and other financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 3 pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, a new asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing Invelvement in
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises a liability. The transferred asset and associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Impairment and non-collectability of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financlal assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed ta he impaired if, and enly
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or econamic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for Impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are nat included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has incurred, the amount of the loss Is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues ta be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment and non-collectability of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carrfed at amortised cost (continued)

The interest income is recorded as part of finance income and revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for loan and receivables and finance lease receivables respectively. Loans together with the associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Available for sale financial assets
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cast. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and "prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss —is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity investrents are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised in other comprehensive profit or loss.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, armong other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, the impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for Impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or |oss.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income. I, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of profit or lass,

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are those expenses incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and condition, as follows:

® Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale - purchase cost on the basis of weighted average cost.

®  Workin progress = costs of direct materials and labour plus attributable
overheads based on a normal level of activity.

®  Finished goods - costs of direct materials and labour plus attributable

overheads based on a normal level of activity.

23



:l.l.

fabreed

et
i

National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value Is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred on completion
and disposal.

Contract work in progress
Contract work in progress represents cost plus attributable profit less provision for foreseeable losses and progress
payments received and receivable.

Cash and short term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand,
bank balances, and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management.

Assets classified as held for sale

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Such non-current assets and disposal
groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs ta sell.
Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the sale, excluding the finance costs and income tax
expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be
withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of the
classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for
sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the statement of financial
position.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed
of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

° Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations

. Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
Operations; or

= Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effactive hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the elassification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of mandatory convertible bonds, term
loans, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafts, mandatory convertible bonds,
term loans and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financlal liabilities depends on their classification and is deseribed below:

Accounts payable and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not,

Interest bearing loans & borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and barrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Galns and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecagnised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Mandatery convertible bond
Mandatory convertible bond is separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the bond.

On issuance of the mandatory convertible bond, the fair value of the liability component is determined by
discounting the future cash flows pertaining to the coupon payments using an estimated market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible bend. Fair value of derivative liability, arising from a fixed range of variability in the
number of shares to be Issued to the bond holders is initially recognised at its fair value and subsequently
remeasured at each reporting date with the changes in fair value taken to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The balance of the proceeds is allocated to the equity conversion portion and recognised under a separate heading
under shareholders’ equity. On conversion at maturity, the par value of the ordinary shares issued is recognised
under issued capital and any surplus recognised under share premium or retained earnings.

Transaction costs are allocated between liability and equity components of the mandatory convertible bond based
on allocation of initial proceeds from the bond between the liability and equity components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financlal guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those eontracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor falls to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure regquired to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date and the amount recognised less curmulative amartisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or maodification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabllity. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

When equity instruments are issued to extinguish all or part of a financial liability (referred to as debt to equity
swaps), the equity instruments are recognised initially at the fair value of the equity instruments issued, unless that
fair value cannot be reliably measured. The difference between the fair value of the equity instruments issued and
the carrying amount of the extinguished financial liability is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. In the case of debt to equity swaps with a direct or indirect shareholders, the Company records the equity
instruments issued at the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished so that no profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group
intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liabllity simultaneously,

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present abligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision Is
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific ta the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the pravision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

An onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the econamic benefits expected to be received under it, The unavoidable costs undar a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. Management reviews its contracts annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

23 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

Restructuring provisions

Restructuring pravisions are recognised only when the Group has a constructive obligation, which is when a detailed
formal plan identifies the business or part of the business concerned, the location and number of employees
affected, a detailed estimate of the associated costs, and an appropriate timeline, and the employees affected have
been notified of the plan’s main features.

Decommissioning liability

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of a manufacturing facility for the production of fire
retardant materials. Decommissioning costs are provided for at the present value of expected costs to settle the
obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the relevant asset. The cash flows
are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The
unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the consolidated statement aof profit or loss as
a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate.
Changes in the estimated future costs, or in the discount rate applied, are added to or deducted from the cost of
the asset,

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business eombination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for previsions
above or the amount initially recognised less (when appropriate) cumulative amartisation recognised in accordance
with the requirements for revenue recognition.

Employees' end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based
upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The
expected costs of these benefits are acerued over the period of employment.

With respect to its national employees, the Group makes contributians to the relevant UAE Government pension
scheme calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The obligations under these schemes are limited to
these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Initial recognition and subseguent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge risks associated with interest
rate. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered Into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives during the year that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

= cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment; or

. fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of an unrecognised firm
commitment.

. Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which the Group wishes ta apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging Instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s cash flows or fair values, as applicable, attributable to the hedged risk.
Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values, as
applicable, and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described belaw:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income under the heading of “changes in fair value of derivatives”, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are transferred to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects the consolidated statement of profit or loss, such
as when the hedged interest expense is recognised or when a forecast sale oceurs,

On restructuring of the hedged item and revocation of hedging relationship, for an effective cash flow hedge, fair
value of the hedging instrument as of the date of restructuring is recognised to statement of profit or loss over the
shorter of remaining life of the ariginal hedged item or hedging instrument.

Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the cumulative amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in equity are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised withaut replacement or rollover (as part of the
hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in consolidated OCI remains separately in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

28



II I A
[1] tabFeed
National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
21 December 2016

23 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derlvative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised in the consolidated statsment of profit or loss.
When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the
fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk Is recognised as an asset or liability with a
corresponding gain or loss recognised in the consalidated statement of profit or loss. The changes in the fair value
of the hedging instrument are also recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, and non-financial assets such as asset held for sale,
at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are
disclosed in note 32.

Fair value is the price that would be received ta sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabllity in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, er
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and far which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observahle inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest |avel input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observahle

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant te the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for non-
recurring measurement, such as asset held for sale. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets,
such as land. Selection criteria for valuers include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The management decides, after discussions with the Group’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

The management, in conjunction with the Group's external valuers, alse compares each the changes in the fair value
of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
verifies the major inputs applied in the |atest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above, An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are
provided in note 32,

Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on eurrent/non-current
classification. An asset as current when it is:

= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

® Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is eurrent when:

® [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
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31 December 2016

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity halders of the parent

The Group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution Is authorised. As per the laws and regulation applicable in UAE, a distribution is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amaunt is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of
the liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

2.4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary
2016, have been adopted in these financial statements. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any
material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future
transactions or arrangements.

= |FRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

+ Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements relating to Disclosure Initiative

= Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint arrangements relating to accaunting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations

+ Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and |AS 38 Intangible Assets relating to clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

= Amendments to |AS 16 Property, Flant and Equipment and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

= Amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements relating to accounting investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates to be optionally accounted for using the equity method in separate financial statements

= Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, \FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and
IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures relating to applying the consolidation exception for
investment entities

= Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 = 2014 Cycle covering amendrments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19 and |AS 34

2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in the future periods.

Disclosures relating to the Group's exposure to risks and uncertainties include:

. Capital management Note 31
. Financial instruments risk management and policies Note 31
= Sensitivity analyses disclosures Note 31
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25 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (eontinued)

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, apart
from those invelving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
cansolidated financial statements:

IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains o Lease

Management determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement Is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

The Company enters into Customer Cooling Services Agreements (the “Agreements”) with its customers. To the
extent such agreements are determined to contain a lease, the provisions of IAS 17 “leases” are applied to
determine whether the Company has retained or transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
related assets,

Impairment of non-financial assets — Indicators of impairment

Management determines at each reporting date whether there are any Indicators of impairment relating to the
Group’s cash generating units, property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and intangible assets.
A broad range of internal and external factors is considered as part of the indicator review process. Refer to note
11 for details on judgements and estimates applied by the management.

Contingencies

By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or mare future events oceur or fail to occur.
The assessment of contingencies inherently invalves the exercise of significant judgement and estimate of the
outcome of future events. The Group recelves claims from its customers and suppliers as part of its ongoing business
and records a provision based on assessment of reliability and probability of the outflow of econemic resources.

Asset retirement obligation

The Group exercises judgement in evaluating whether an arrangement contains a legal or constructive obligation
to remave the plant and equipment and restore the land at the end of the contractual arrangement or end of useful
life of the Group’s plant and equipment constructed and installed on land leased from the respective customer or
third party. The cost estimates relating to asset retirement obligations can vary in response to factors including
changes to relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new techniques or experience at sites. The expected
timing of expenditure can also change. However, the Group expects the financial impact of any such factors would
be negligible.

Provisions relating to contracts
The Group reviews all its arrangements on a regular basis to identify any arrangements where the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the
cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The Group estimates any such
provision based on the facts and circumstances relevant to the contract.

Determination of cash-generating unit (CGU)

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Determining CGU require management to analyse the contractual
terms and physical features of assets such as inter-connection and sharing of chilled water generation capabilities
and requires significant judgement in determining at which level independent cash inflows are generated.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared., Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Graup. 5uch changes are reflected in the consolidated financial statements when they oceur.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment for
calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the current usage of the asset compared to
full utilisation capabilities of the asset and physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and
useful lives annually.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot
be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation technigues including the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. The judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financlal instruments.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment testing requires an estimation of the fair values less cost to sell and value in use of the cash generating
units. The recaverable amounts require the Company to estimate the amount and timing of future cash flows,
terminal value of the assets, cost to complete the construction of the assets and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of the cash flows,

The net carrying amounts of non-financial assets affected by the above estimations are as follows:

2016 2015

AED ‘000 AED 000

Capital work in progress (note 10) 117,775 304,723
Property, plant and equipment (note 11) 3,845,225 3,498,466
Intangible assets (note 14) 27,710 37,596

Impairment of accounts recelvable, amounts due from related parties, finance lease receivable and loan to o Jjoint
venture

An estimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties and finance lease
receivables is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts,
this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are
past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the length of time past due, based on
historical recovery rates.

At the reporting date, gross trade accounts receivable were AED 278.4 million (2015: AED 254.5 million) and
impairment lass recognised in the cansolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016
was AED 5.7 million (2015: AED 4.3 million).
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25 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on
an Individual basis. Amounts which are nat individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed
collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based
on historical selling prices.

At the reporting date, gross inventory was AED 46.2 million (2015: AED 37.8 million). Provision of AED 14.2 million
has been made for obsolete inventaries during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: AED nil). Any difference
between the amounts actually realised in future periods and the amounts expected to be realised will be recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.6 NEW AND REVISED IFRS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective;

Effective for annual periods

New and revised |FRSs beginning on or after
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycle amending IFRS  The amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS
1,IFRS 12 and IAS 28 28 are effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January
2018, the amendment to IFRS 12
for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Finoncial Statements and IAS 28  Effective date deferred
Investments in Associates and loint Ventures (2011) relating to the indefinitely
treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from and investor to its

associate or joint venture,

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to  When IFRS 9 is first applied
disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 9

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional hedge  When IFRS 9 is first applied
accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments) resulting from the
introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes relating to the recognition of deferred 1 lanuary 2017
tax assets for unrealised losses
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2.6 NEW AND REVISED IFRS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

New and revised IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of
transactions where;

= there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign
currency;

* the entity recognises a prepayment asset or a deferred income liability
in respect of that consideration, in advance of the recognition of the
related asset, expense or income; and

* the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-monetary,

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment regarding classification and
measurement of share based payment transactions

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Controcts: Relating to the different
effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new insurance contracts
standard.

Amendments to IA5 40 Investment Property: Amends paragraph 57 to state
that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment praperty
when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change of use
occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property. A change in management’s intentions far the use of a property by
itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use.

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1January 2017

1January 2018

1lanuary 2018

1January 2018

1 January 2018
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2.6 NEW AND REVISED IFRS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

New a evised IFRSs

IFRS 3 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010, 2013 and 2014)

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in November
2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value
through other comprehensive income’ (FYTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

A finalised version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements for
financlal instruments, replacing 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The standard contains requirements in the following areas:

+ Classification and measurement: Financial assets are classified by
reference to the business model within which they are held and their
contractual cash flow characteristics. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces
a 'fair value through other comprehensive income’ category for certain
debt instruments. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar manner to
under IAS 39, however there are differences in the requirements applying
to the measurement of an entity's own credit risk.

= Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 5 introduces an 'expected credit loss'
model for the measurement of the impairment of financial assets, so it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before a credit loss
is recognised

* Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model that is
designed to be more closely aligned with how entities undertake risk
management activities when hedging financial and non-financial risk
exposures.

= Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial assets
and liabilities are carried forward from |AS 39,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2018

1 January 2018
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26 NEW AND REVISED IFRS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Effective for annual periods

New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, Specifically, the standard introduces S-step
approach to revenue recognition:

=  Step 1: |dentify the contract(s) with a customer.

*  Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the contract.

=  5Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

*  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract.

= 5tep 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
perfermance obligation s transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are requirad by IFRS 15.

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure, present and
disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model,
requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease
term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors
continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16's approach to
lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17,

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the Group’s
financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments, except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16, may have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Group in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2018 and that IFRS 16 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2019. The application of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 may have
significant impact on amounts reported and disclasures made in the Group’s financial statements in respect of
revenue from contracts with customers and the Group’s consolidated financial assets and financial liabilities and the
application of IFRS 16 may have significant impact on amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements in respect of its leases,

However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of effects of the application of these standards until
the Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

3 REVENUE

Supply of chilled water and operating revenue (note 30)
Finance lease income (hote 16)
Value chain business

4 OPERATING SEGMENTS

2016 2015

AED ‘000 AED ‘000
982,396 914,761
185,587 187,994
111,870 101,253
1,279,853 1,204,008

For management purpases, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services. The two
reportable operating segments are as follows:

= The ‘Chilled water’ segment constructs, owns, assembles, installs, operates and maintains cooling and
conditioning systems. In addition, the segment distributes and sells chilled water for use in district cooling

technologies (note 9).

- The ‘Value chain business' segment is involved in ancillary activities relating to the expansion of the Group's
chilled water business (note 9).

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with the Group’s
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. However, Group financing (finance costs and
interest income) are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Revenue

External
Revenue

Inter—segment
revenue

Total revenue
Operating costs
Gross profit

Administrative
and ather
axpenses

Operating profit

Finance costs
Finance income
Other gains and
losses
Share of results of
associates and
joint ventures

2016 2015
Chilled Value chain Chilled Value chain
water business  Eliminations Total water business Eliminations Total
AEDDOO AED'ODD AED‘000 AED000 AED'000 AEDQO0 AED'000 AED0O0
1,167,983 111,870 - 1,279,853 1,102,755 101,253 1,204,008
- 20,185 {20,185) - - 18,597 (18,597) -
1,167,983 132,055 (20,185) 1,279,853 1,102,755 119,850 {18,597) 1,204,008
(616,593) (83,609) 18,223 (681,979) (577,028) (84,499) 18,134 [643,393)
551,390 48,446 (1,952) 597,874 525,727 35,351 (463) 560,615
(164,073) (31,527) 3,057 (192,543) (155,299) {23,456) 837 (177,918)
387,317 16,919 1,095 405,331 370,428 11,895 374 382,697
- - (155,959) E - # (138,987)
- - 394 - 1,438
- = 4,986 - 4,203
116,950 - - 116,950 98,660 - 98,660
3?1=702 348,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016

4 OPERATING SEGMENTS continued

Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

Segment results include an amount of depreciation and amortisation allocated to the operating segments as follows:

2016 2015
Chilled Value chaln Total Chilled  Value chain Total
water business water business

AED000 AED000 AED'000 AED000 AED0GOD AED'000

Depreciation 122,437 6,986 129,423 116,824 3,076 119,500

Finance lease amortisation 48,415 - 48,415 42,075 - 42,075

Segment assets and liabilities are as follows:
2016 2015
Chilted Value ehain Unallacated Total Chilled Value chain Unallecated Total
water buginess water business

AED'DOO AEDD00 AED'000 AED'CO0 AEDDOD AED'O00 AED'DOQ AED'0DD

Segment assets 7,634,562 187,615 7,822,177 7,348,701 129,744 7,478,445
Disposal group and asset held

for sale - - 21,055 70,146 91,201

Investments In associates 640,516 - 640,516 590,178 - 590,178

Investment in Joint ventures 185,580 - 185,580 51,000 51,000

Unalloeated assets 13,120 13,120 22,000 22,000

Tatal assets 8,460,658 187,615 13,120 8,661,393 8,010,934 199,890 22,000 8,232,824

Segmant liabilities 753,314 46,108 - 799,422 673,838 43,334 717,172
Liabllities directly ossociated

with asset hald for sale - - - . 16,078 - 16,078

Unallacated liabilities - 3,423,880 3,423,880 - 3,273,808 3,273,808

Total Labilities 753,314 45,108 3,423,880 4,223,302 673,838 59,412 3,273,808 4,007,058

Unallocated assets represent bank deposits of AED 13.1million (2015: AED 22.0 million) as these assets are managed

on a group basis.

Unallocated liabilities represent interest bearing loans and borrowings of AED 3,229.9 million (2015: AED 2,997.3
millien), obligations under finance lease of AED 11.3 million (2015: AED 17.7 million) and mandatory convertible
bond —liability companent of AED 182.6 million (2015: AED 258.8 million)

Other segment disclosures :

Capital expenditure:
Praperty, plant and equipment

Capltal work in progress

Investment in an associate and a joint venture

2018 2015
Chilled Value chaln Total Chilled Value choin Tatal
water business waler business
AED000 AED'000 AED'000 AER'ODQ AEDDOO AED'000
122,519 4,306 126,825 108,291 3,666 112,957
198,750 198,750 191,702 = 191,702
91,837 91,837 -
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4 OPERATING SEGMENTS continued

Geographic information

The following tables present certain non-current assets and revenue information relating to the Group based on

geographical lacation of the operating units:

Revenue Non-current assets
2016 2015 2016 2015
AED ‘ooo AED 000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
United Arab Emirates 1,208,003 1,160,345 6,339,296 6,116,684
Others 71,850 43,663 433,981 460,793
1,279,853 1,204,008 6,773,277 6,577,477

For this purpose, non-current assets corprise of capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment, finance

lease receivables and intangible assets,

Revenue from external customers

The following table provides information relating to the Group's major custormers which contribute more than 10%

towards the Group’s revenue in 2016 or 2015.

Chilled water segment:
Customer 1
Customer 2
Customer 3

5 FINANCE COSTS

Gross interest charge for the year
Less: interest capitalised during the year

Interest charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year

Interest charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss comprises of:
Interest on interest bearing loans and borrowings

Accretion expense on mandatory convertible bonds (note 24)

Interest element of obligations under finance lease

Amortisation of transaction costs

Other finance costs

2016 2015
AED'000 AED'000
305,821 302,077
260,445 249,647
118,191 112,315
684,457 664,035

2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
157,356 138,987
(1,397) -
155,959 138,987
123,027 100,848
9,214 14,735
1,412 1,990
15,768 14,036

6,538 7,378
155,959 138,087
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31 December 2016
6 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
6.1 Operating costs
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense 48,554 53,974
Depreciation (note 11) 123,880 115,193
Utility costs 338,077 313,518
Purchase of chilled water from a related party (note 28) 101,001 99,260
staff and Others 70,467 61,448
681,979 643,393
6.2 Adminlistrative and other expenses
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED 000
Staff costs 125,059 120,088
Depreciation (note 11) 5,543 4,707
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (note 17) 5,694 4,331
Other administrative and general expenses 56,247 48,792
192,543 177,918
7 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of mandatory convertible bond (note 20).

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate basic earnings per share,
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016
7 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT continued

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

2016 2015
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent for basic earnings (AED "000) 367,362 345,345
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares)
outstanding during the year (‘000) 736,474 736,474
Effect of mandatory convertible bond (‘00D) 1,977,039 2,352,959
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (exeluding treasury shares)
adjusted for the effect of mandatory convertible bond ('000) 2,713,513 3,089,473
Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED) 0.14 0.11

Basic earnings per share has been calculated on the basis of maximum number of shares that may be issued for
mandatory convertible bond (note 24). The Company does not have any instruments which would have a dilutive
impact on earnings per share when exercised.

On 30 June 2015, 758,150,113 potential ordinary shares were retired as a result of repurchase of a portion of
mandatory convertible bond (MCB-18).

8 DIVIDENDS AND BOARD REMUNERATION

On 29 January 2017, the Board of Directors resolved to recommend to the shareholders at the upcoming Annual
General Assembly meeting, the distribution to shareholders and mandatory convertible bond holder of dividend of
6.5 fils per share in respect of the fiscal year ended 31 December 2016.

A cash dividend of 6 fils per share pertaining to both common shareholders and mandatory eonvertible bond holder
in respect of the fiscal year ended 31 December 2015 was approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting held on 2 March 2016. The dividend comprised of AED 44.2 million to the common shareholders and AED

118.6 million to the mandatory convertible bond holder and was paid in April 2016.

In 2015, the Board of Directors proposed a dividend of 5 fils per share in respect of the fiscal year ended 31 December
2014. This dividend was approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 11 March 2015. The
dividend comprised of AED 36.9 million to the common shareholders and AED 136.7 million to the mandatory
convertible bond holder and was paid in April 2015.

During the year, management reassessed the accounting policy on Board of Director's remuneration and determined
that it should be reflected in the staterment of profit or loss. Accordingly, Board of Directar’s remuneration is accrued
and expensed in the current year. The opening balance of the retained earning has not been restated to reflect the
Board of Director’'s remuneration for 2015 of AED 7.1 million as the amount is considered immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016

9 SUBSIDIARIES AND MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Cornpany and the subsidiaries listed in

the following table:

Country of
Incorporation
Chilled water segment
National Central Cooling Company Ras Al Khaimah LLC UAE
Summit District Cooling Company UAE
Bahrain District Cooling Company Bahrain
Tabreed Oman SAOC Oman
Tabreed LLC Oman Oman
Tabreed Operation & Maintenance Zones
Cooling Stations Company LLC UAE
Tabreed Parks Investment LLC UAE
Prime District Cooling company LLC (i) UAE
Value chain business segment
Gulf Energy Systems LLC UAE
Emirates Preinsulated Pipes Industries LLC UAE
Installation Integrity 2000 LLC UAE
CoolTech Energy Water Treatment LLC UAE
lan Banham and Associates UAE
Sahara Cooling and Air Conditioning LLC UAE
Tasleem Metering and Payment LLC UAE
Others - Unallocated
Tabreed Holdings WLL Bahrain
Tabreed Al Maryah District Cooling Investment LLC UAE

None of the subsidiaries have material non-controlling interests.

Percentage of holding

2016 2015
100 100
100 100
90 20
G0 60
100 100
100 100
100 100
75 =
100 100
60 &0
100 100
100 100
70 70
51 51
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

Selling of chilled water
selling of chilled water
Selling of chilled water
Selling of chilled water
Selling of chilled water

Operation and maintenance of plants
Selling of chilled water
Selling of chilled water

Construction of secondary networks
Manufacturing of pre-insulated pipes
Commissioning and engineering services
Water treatment services and selling chilled
water related products

Design and supervision consultancy

Act as the commercial representative of Sahara
Cooling Limited, an associate (note 12)

Billing and collection of chilled water charges
from residential and retail

Act as a holding company
Act as a holding company

n During the year, the Company incorporated a 75% owned subsidiary, Prime District Cooling Company LLC,
in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi with a share capital of AED 5 million. The Company is incorporated to acquire
anew plant and the principal activity of the subsidiary is to supply chilled water to customers.
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31 December 2016
10 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
The movement in capital work in progress during the year is as follows:
2016 2015
AED '000 AED ‘000
Balance at 1 January 292,795 140,121
Additions during the year 193,750 191,702
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 11) (219,689) (16,132)
Transfer to finance lease (note 16) (62,115) (22,896)
109,741 292,795
Advances to contractors 8,034 11,928
Balance at 31 December 117,775 304,723

Refer to note 11 for indicators and impairment assessment of cash generating units.
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office
equipment
Lond, plant Distribution Furniture and and
and buildings network fixtures instruments  Maotor vehicles Total
AEDDOD AED'000 AED'000 ALLO00 AED'000 AED000
2016
Cost;
At 1 January 2016 3,201,558 2,001,335 11,507 41,185 523 5,256,108
Additions 97,964 20,349 BE9 7,540 103 126,825
Transfer [rom capital work in prograss (note 10) 139,037 180,652 - z . 319,689
Transfer from assets held lar sale (note 18) 69,678 - 438 4,684 536 75,336
Disposals (2,138) - {2.865) {10,434) {85) (17,582)
At 31 December 2016 J.!DQ‘HB 2,202,336 7,949 42,915 1,077 "750'375
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2018 520,876 218,402 10,074 31,485 apa 7813391
Depreciation for the yaar 80,821 a3,522 557 4,472 51 129,423
Transfar (o sisals held for sale (note 18) 40,480 - 438 4,228 512 45,668
Depreciation relating to disposals {2,138) = [4.864) (10,494) (88} {17,582)
At 31 Decomber 2016 640,089 262,014 6,204 29,671 972 934,900
Nat earrying amount before accumulated Impairment:
At 11 December 2016 2,856,060 1,940,322 1,745 13,234 108 5!2[:475
Impairment:
At 1 January 2016 514,931 461,320 - = - 976,251
Impairmeént during the year E a T P! A E
At 31 Decamber 2016 514,931 461,320 - = - 978,251
Nat eartyifig amaunt after accumulated impalrment:
At 31 December 2016 2,351,129 1,473,002 1,745 13,244 108 3,845,215
Office
equipment
Land, plant Distribution Furpiture and and
and hulldings network fixtures instruments  Motor vehicles Total
AEDDOD AEDTO0 AEDDOD AEDDO0 AED'DOO AED00D
2015
Cost:
At 1 January 2015 3,287,947 1,883,476 10,748 40,180 1,059 5,223,410
Additions 813 108,273 997 2,874 - 112,957
Transfer from capital work in progress [note 10) 3531 9,580 200 2,815 - 16,132
Transfer 1o agsets hald for sale (note 18) 190,733) - {438) {4.684) (536) {96,391)
At 31 December 2015 3,201,558 2,001,335 11,507 41,185 523 5,256,108
Depreclation:
At 1 January 2015 486,448 176,635 10,245 32,840 831 707,159
Dupreciation for the year 74,908 41,857 267 2,853 15 119,900
Transfer to assets held for sale {note 18) {40,480} . [43R) (4,228) {522} (45 m;
At 31 Decamber 2015 S10.870 218,492 10,074 31,465 484 781,391
Mut carrying smount before accumulated impairment:
At 31 December 2015 2 682 1,782,843 1433 9,720 !_9_. 4,474,717
Impalrment:
At 1 lsnuary 2015 514,911 461,320 - . - 976,251
impairment during the year . . - . z .
AL 11 Decernber 201% 514,911 461,320 - - - 876,251
Net carrying amount after accumulated impairmant;
At 31 December 2015 2,165,751 1,321,523 1,433 9,720 k) 3,498,466
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31 December 2016

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

2016 2015

AED ‘000 AED 000

Included in operating costs (note 6.1) 123,880 115,193
Included in administrative and other expenses (note 6.2) 5,543 4,707
129,423 119,900

Property, plant and equipment together with the customer receivables associated with these plants of AED 4,427
million (2015: AED 4,411 million) have been pledged as security for the interest bearing loans (note 23).

Net book value of plant amounting to AED 35 million (2015: AED 36.6 million) are held under finance lease.
The leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease liability (note 25).

The management undertakes an annual strategic review of all its projects with the view of assessing the impact of
any internal or external factors on the recoverable amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and capital
work In progress.

The Group applies the value in use methodology using cash flow projections to estimate the recoverable amount of
its property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress approved by the Group’s management and Board of
Directors.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive in the following judgements and assumptions:

. Identification of cash generating units;

s Estimated use of the plant measured by its Equivalent Full Load Hours (EFLH) defined as annual ton-hours
of coaling actually supplied divided by the supplying chiller's design capacity in tons;

- Amount and timing of revenue relating to capacity of the plant,

a. contracted but not connected at year end; and
b. not connected at year end;

= Inflation rate (3%) used ta extrapolate cash flows beyond the peried of the initial agreement with the
respective customer;

s Cost of construction relating to plant and equipment under construction based on contracts signed to date
and estimate of cost required to complete;

. Discount rate based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of 8.5% - 9.2% (2015: 8.5% -
9.2%); and

° Terminal value of distribution assets and buildings.

Revenue estimates are based on discussions with existing and potential customers and expected future loads. Cash
inflows are based on the term of the existing contracts with the respective customers extended to the period of
expected usage of the plant,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016
12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
The Company has the following investments in assaciates:

Ownership

Cauntry of incorporation 2016 2015

Industrial City Cooling Company United Arab Emirates 20% 20%
Qatar Central Cooling Company PISC Qatar 44% 44%
Tabreed District Cooling Company (Saudi) Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 25% 25%
Sahara Coaling Limited United Arab Emirates 40% 40%

The Group's interest in associates is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.
Movement in investment in associates is as follows:

2016 2015

AED ‘000 AED 000

At 1 January 590,178 529,430
Share of results for the year (i) 95,227 89,581
Dividends received (47,257) (33,476)
Share of changes in fair value of effective cash flow hedges 2,368 4,643
At 31 December 640,516 590,178

The associates are involved in the same business activity as Tabreed, The reporting dates for the associates are
identical to Tabreed.

(i) Adjusted by profit resulting from transactions between the Company and the associates amounting to
AED 1.9 million (2015: AED 1.3 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016
12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES continued
The following illustrates summarised financial information of the Group's investments in associates:
Qatar Central Cooling  Tabreed District Cooling
Cempany PISC Company (Saudi) Others Total
AED 000° AED 000° AED 000" AED 000"
2016
Current assets 333,995 380,735 94,635 B0B,365
Non-current assets 1,533,916 1,614,732 407,763 3,556,411
Current lizbilities (289,011) {225,347} (39,416) (553,774)
Non-current liabllities (697,259) (1,055,123} (266,166) (2,018,548)
Net assets 881,641 714,997 196,816 1,793,454
Tabreed's share of net assets 387,922 178,749 73,845 640,516
2015
Current assets 292,640 490,234 100,834 883,708
Non-current assets 1,299,351 1,328,691 423,903 3,051,985
Current llabilities (264,531) {256,986) (51,898) (573,415)
Non-current labllities (509,223) {913,371) {290,194) {1,712,788)
Net assets 818,277 648,568 182,645 1,649,490
Tabreed’s share of net assets 360,042 162,142 67,994 590,178
2016
Revenue 344,228 220,713 113,701 678,642
Cost of sales (144,398) (77,514) {52,065) (273,975)
Administrative and other expenses (86,493) (23,877) (3,060) (113,430)
Other Income - 61,589 340 61,929
Net finance cost (8,688) (41,723) (12,510) (62,921)
Other Charges (2,620) - - (2,620)
Prafit for the year 102,031 139,188 46,406 287,625
Tabreed's share of results for the year 44,894 34,797 17,465 97,156
2015
Revenue 352,822 181,888 114,598 649,308
Cost of sales {149,215) (66,370) (57,630) (273,215)
Administrative and other expenses (88,717) {26,211) {1,585) (116,513)
Other Income - 72,982 o 72,982
Net finance cost (10,573) (29,273) (13,454) (53,300}
Other Charges - (20,000) - {20,000)
Profit for the year 104,317 113,016 41,929 250,262
Tabreed's share of results for the year 45,900 28,254 16,736 90,890

Net assets of assoclates include the Company’s share of negative fair value of derivatives of associates amounting to AED 4.5 million
(2015: AED 6.8 million). Summarised financial information of the Group's investments in assoclates is adjusted for intercompany

transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016
13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
The Company has the following investments in joint ventures:
Ownership

Country of incorporation 2016 2015
SNC Lavalin Gulf Contractors LLC United Arab Emirates 51% 51%
5&T Cool District Cooling Company LLC United Arab Emirates 50% 50%
Business District Cooling Investment LLC United Arab Emirates 50% 50%

SNC Lavalin Gulf Contractors LLC (SLGC), a limited liability company Is involved in engineering, procurement,
construction and construction management in the field of District Cooling. The Group’s interest in SLGC is accounted
for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements as both the shareholders Jointly control and

have equal rights to the net assets,

S&T Cool District Cooling Company LLC (S&T), a limited liability company, incorporated in Emirate of Abu Dhabi, is
invelved in the same business activity as Tabreed. The Group's interest in S&T is accounted for using the equity

method in the conselidated financial statements.

The reporting date for the joint ventures is identical to Tabreed.

Movement in investments in joint ventures is as follows:

At 1 January

Addition contribution to a jeint venture (i)

Transfer of loan to investment (note 15)

Share of results for the year

Dividend

Share of changes in fair value of effective cash flow hedges
Adjustments for inter group transactions

At 31 December

Share of the joint ventures’ revenues and profits:
Revenues

Profit for the year

2016 2015
AED 000 AED 000
51,000 49,233
91,837 .
72,276 -
19,794 7,770
(29,000) :
593 (8,274)
(20,920) 2,271
185,580 51,000
79,278 104,789
19,794 7,770

(i) In2016, the Company made an additional investment of AED 91.8 million in Business District Cooling Investment
LLC. The investment had been accounted for as a joint venture under the equity method of accounting as both

the shareholders jointly control and have equal rights to the net assets.

The following illustrates summarised financial information of the Group's investment in joint ventures:

Revenue
Cost of sales
Administrative and other expenses
Other Income
Net finance cost
Profit for the year

Tabreed's share of results for the year

2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
158,093 203,537
(88,154) (168,820)
(10,431) (8,151)
216 222
(20,006) (11,275)
39,718 15,513
19,794 7,770
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13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES continued
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED 000
Current assets 142,674 284,660
Non-current assets 1,276,807 1,246,040
Current liabllities (142,027) (225,437)
Non-current liabllities (906,875) {1,130,989)
Loan from shareheolders (note 15) - (72,276)
Total net assets 370,579 101,998
Tabreed's share of net assets 185,580 51,000

Net assets of joint ventures include the Company’s share of negative fair value of derivatives of a joint venture
amounting to AED 21.8 million (2015: AED 22.4 million). Summarised financial information of the Group's investments
in joint ventures is adjusted for intercompany transactions.

None of the joint ventures are individually material to the Group.

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
At 1 lanuary 37,596 37,596
Accumulated impairment losses (9,885) -
27,710 37,596
Impairment testing of goodwill
Carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash generating units is as follows:
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
lan Banham & Associates 27,710 27,711
UAE Armed Forces g 9,712
Other - 173
Total 27,710 37,596
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued
Impairment testing of goodwill continued

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to the following main individual cash-
generating units, for impairment testing;

® lan Banham & Associates cash-generating unit relating to goodwill arising from acquisition of equity
interest in lan Banham & Associates; and
® UAE Armed Forces cash generating unit relating ta goodwill arising from acquisition of Gulf Energy Systems.

lan Banham & Associates

The recoverable amount of the lan Banham & Associates unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using revenue and cost cash flow projections approved by the board of directors covering a five-year
period ending 31 December 2021. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 25% (2015: 25%).
Revenue is earned from project supervision and study and design contracts. The revenue in the five year cash flow
model reflects management estimates of projected revenue on a conservative basis. Contract costs primarily
represent salaries and related benefits of technical staff such as engineers and other administrative costs. Such costs
are included in the model based on current expected market trend. The cash flow projections include an estimate
of terminal value based an inflation related growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%).

UAE Armed Forces cash generating unit

Since Gulf Energy Systems is not actively engaged in any major business activities, management has decided to
impair the goodwill in full amounting to AED 9.9 million and recorded under other gains and losses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

15 LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED 000
Loan to a joint venture - 72,276

During the year, the Company reached to an agreement with its joint partner to treat a loan amounting to AED 72
million previously provided to S&T District Cooling Company LLC as an additional capital contribution (note 12),
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16 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
Movement in the finance lease receivables during the year is as follows:
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
At 1 January 2,963,096 2,982,275
Initial recognition of new finance lease
receivables during the year (i) 98,804 22,896
Finance lease income (note 3) 185,587 187,994
Lease rentals received (234,002) (230,069)
At 31 December 3,013,485 2,963,096
Analysed in the consalidated statement of financial position as fallows:
Current assets 230,918 226,404
Non-current assets 2,782,567 2,736,692
3,013,485 2,963,096

Future minimum lease receivables under finance leases together with the present value of net minimum lease

receivables are as follows:

2016 2015
Minimum Present Minimum Present
lease value of lease value of
receivables minimum receivables rminimum
lease lease
AED ‘0o AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Within one year 243,899 230,918 234,003 226,404
After one but no mare than five years 1,034,542 B42,428 281,812 813,471
More than five years 4,058,418 1,940,139 4,187,306 1,923,221
5,336,859 3,013,485 5,403,121 2,963,086
Unearned revenue (2,323,374) (2,440,025) -
3,013,485 3,013,485 2,963,096 2,963,096
Maovement in unearned revenue is as follows:
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
At 1 January 2,440,025 2,609,335
Relating to new finance leases 68,936 18,684
Recognised during the year (note 3) (185,587) (187,994)
At 31 December 2,323,374 2,440,025

No unguaranteed residual value to the benefit of the lessor is assumed for the purpose of the above calculation.
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16 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES continued

(i) During the year, the Company constructed a new district cooling plant for an existing customer and signed a
cooling agreement with the customer. Management has carried out an assessment of the arrangement to provide
cooling services to the customer through the plant in accordance with the terms of the agreement and the
requirements of the relevant IFRSs, and concluded that the arrangement contains a finance lease with respect to
the plant and related distribution network as it transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to the
ownership of the plant to the customer.

The carrying amount of the plant and related distribution network amounting to AED 62.1 million has been
transferred from capital work in progress and finance lease receivable has been recorded at fair value at the
inception of the Agreement amounting to AED 98.8 million, resulting in a gain of AED 36.7 million, recorded under
other gains and losses in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During 2015, Tabreed Oman, a subsidiary, signed a Master Cooling Agreement (the “Agreement”) with a customer
for a cantract period of 15 years. Management has carried out an assessment of the arrangement to provide cooling
services to the customer through the specified plants in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and the
requirements of the relevant IFRSs, and concluded that the arrangement contains a finance lease with respect to
the specified plants and related distribution network as it transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incidental
to the ownership of the specified plants to the custormer,

The plant had been transferred from contract work in progress and finance lease receivable had been recorded at
fair value of AED 22.8 million.

17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

2016 2015

AED ‘000 AED 000

Trade receivables, net 262,128 238,404
Amounts due from related parties (note 28) 46,427 53,869
Advances to contractors and employees 13,493 19,117
Contract work in progress 16,183 40,058
Deposits and other receivables 54,997 47,981
Prepayments 15,887 10,077
409,115 409,506
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17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS continued

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables with a nominal value of AED 16.2 million (2015: AED 16.1 million) were
impaired and fully provided for. Movements in the provision for impalrment of trade receivables were as follows:

2016 2015

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

At 1 January 16,135 11,932
Charge for the year (note 6.2) 5,694 4,331
Amounts written off (5,585) (128)
At 31 December 16,244 16,135

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of unimpaired trade receivables and amounts due from related parties is as
follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past
due nor 30-60 60-30 90-120 120- 365 >365
Total impaired < 30 days days days days days days
AEDO00 AED'O00 AED000 AED'000 AED'000 AED000 AED000 AED'000
2016 308,555 181,613 44,861 9,872 8,512 8,614 27,505 27,578
2015 292,273 191,338 20,177 9,942 9,743 6,752 28,109 26,212

Unimpaired receivables are expected on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice
of the Group to obtain collateral over receivables and the vast majority are therefore, unsecured.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30— 60 days terms. For terms and conditions relating
to related party receivables, refer to note 28.

18 DISPOSAL GROUP AND ASSET HELD FOR SALE
(i) Disposal group held for sale

During the year, due to a change in market conditions, the Group has changed its intention to sell one of its
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities that were previously classified as ‘disposal group held for sale’ has
been represented under the applicable assets and liabilities captions as at 31 December 2016 and are measured at
their carrying value in accordance with requirements of IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations. Similarly, comparative amounts for “disposal group and assets held for sale” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for prior year are represented to reflect the classification in the consolidated statemant
of profit or loss for the current year presented.
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18 DISPOSAL GROUP AND ASSET HELD FOR SALE (continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the subsidiary that were previously classified as ‘disposal group held for
sale’ as at 31 December 2015 and represented in the current year as follows:

AED ‘000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 29,668
Trade and other receivables 18,122
Inventaries 5,879
Bank balances and cash associated with assets held for sale (note 19) 16,477
Assets held for sale 70,148
Liabilities
Employees' end of service benefits {451)
Accounts payables, advances and accruals (15,627]
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale (16,078)
Net assets held for sale 54,068

(ii) Asset held for sale

During the year, the Group sold a plot of land which was previously classified as held for sale. The carrying amount
of the land was AED 21 million and the Group recognised a gain of AED 1.6 million on sale and is recognised under
other gains and losses In the consolidated statement of profit or lass during the year.

19 CASH AND TERM DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash included in the consalidated statement of financial position:

2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Bank balances and cash 376,841 154,969
Bank deposits 13,120 22,000
389,961 176,969

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows include the following consalidated
statement of financial position amounts:

2016 2015

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Bank balances and cash 376,841 154,969
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 13,120 22,000
Bank balance and cash attributable to disposal group (note 18) - 16,477
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 389,961 193,446

Bank deposits attract a fixed rate of interest ranging from 1.3 to 2.5% per annum (2015: 1.0% to 1.6% per annum).
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19 CASH AND TERM DEPOSITS continued

Geographical concentration of cash and term depasits is as follows:

2016 2015
AED "000 AED 000

Within UAE 371,159 179,813
Outside UAE 18,802 13,633
389,961 193,446

20 ISSUED CAPITAL
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Authorised, issued and fully pald up share capital
Shares 738,489,648 (2015: 738,489,648) ordinary shares of AED 1 each 738,490 738,490

21 TREASURY SHARES

The Company set up an employee incentive scheme in accordance with the Board of Directors resolution dated
17 December 2000, and contributed to a separate account for the purchase of the Company’s ordinary shares and
to act as a custodian for such shares. The Company retains the significant risks and rewards associated with those
shares.

22 RESERVES

Statutory reserve

As required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and the articles of assaciation of the Company, 10% of the profit
for the year is transferred to the statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such transfers when
the reserve equals 50% of the issued capital. The reserve is not available for distribution.

Other reserve

This represents amounts transferred on repurchase of Mandatory Convertible Bonds (MCB) 08 on 19 May 2011
through delivery of 415,683,447 shares. AED 1,145.2 million represents difference between the total of liability and
equity components extinguished and shares issued. The reserve also includes an amount of AED 8.671 million
created on settlement of subordinated loan facility - Tranche B into mandatory convertible bonds in 2012.

During the year 2014, the Company's Board of Directors resalved to transfer an amount of AED 137.8 million from
the other reserve to retained earnings (note 24).

Following the conversion of a tranche of mandatory convertible bond (*MCB-4"), during 2014 an amount of AED
54.4 million was transferred to other reserve which represents the difference between the carrying of MCB-4 and
the amount attributable to share capital.

Further, during 2015, the Company repurchased a portion of MCB-1B (note 24) that resulted in a one off charge to
the other reserves amounting to AED 209.3 million.
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23 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Effective interest 2016 2015
rate % AED ‘000 AED 000
Term loan 1- Facility A (note i) EIBOR + margin 298,573 473,168
Term loan 1- Facility B (note i) EIBOR + margin 1,424,511 1,358,882
Term loan 1- Facility C (note i) EIBOR + margin 938,194 997,828
Revalving credit facility {note i) EIBOR + margin 132,090 -
Term loan 2 (note ii) LIBOR + margin 124,707 133,744
Term loan 3 (note iii) 4.5% 49,964 33,685
Term loan 4 (note iv) EIBOR + margin 185,517 =
Term loan 5 (note v) EIBOR + margin 76,343 -
3,229,899 2,997,307
Analysed in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
2016 2015
AED 000 AED ‘000
Current portion 342,712 189,021
Non-current portien 2,887,187 2,808,286
3,229,899 2,997,307

(i) Term loan 1 = facility (A, B and C)

Facility A

The facility A is repayable in 9 equal semi-annual instalments of AED 76.9 million each commencing from
31 December 2015 with the last instalment due on 31 December 2018, The facility carries interest rate of EIBOR plus
a margin.

Facility B
Facility B is repayable in 4 equal semi-annual instalments of AED 76.9 million each commencing from 30 lune 2019
and the remainder in a bullet payment on 31 March 2021. The facility carries interest rate of EIBOR plus a margin.

A revolving facility of AED 450 million is also extended to the Group which is to be utilised in the form of issuance of
documentary credits and drawing cash advances, The revolving facility carries interest at EIBOR plus a margin and Is
repayable on 31 March 2021. As of 31 December 2016, the Company has utilised AED 140 million from the revolving
facility.

Facility C

In 2015, the Company obtained a new term loan facility = Facility C, under its existing financing arrangement with a
syndicate of commercial banks amounting te AED 1,000 million ta finance the repurchase of Mandatory Convertible
Bond 1B (note 24). The facility carries interest rate of EIBOR plus a margin.

Faeility C is repayable in 11 equal semi-annual instalments of AED 18.2 million commencing on 31 December 2015
with a bullet payment of AED 800 million on 31 March 2021. All other terms of the new facility are the same as the
existing facilities.

Interest on the loan facilities is payable in cash on a quarterly basis. The facilities are secured against plants,
equipment and trade debtors (refer note 11).
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23 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS cantinued

(ii) Term loan 2
Term loan 2 relating to a subsidiary borrowing is repayable in 22 semi-annual instalments starting 2008.

(iii) Term loan 3

Term loan 3 relating to a subsidiary borrowing with a local commercial bank, the loan is repayable in quarterly
instalments and carries fixed interest of 4.5% per annum, The loan is secured by pari passu charge over plant and
machinery.

(iv) Term loan 4

During the year, the Group obtained a new term loan facility from a local commercial bank amounting to AED 1592.5
million which was obtained to finance the construction of a new plant. The facility carries interest rate of EIBOR plus
a margin, payable in cash on a quarterly basis and is secured against the plant for which facility Is obtained. The
facility Is repayable in 23 semi-annual instalments commencing on March 2017 with a bullet payment of AED 48.1
million in March 2028,

{v) Term loan 5

During the year, the Group obtained a new term loan facility from a local commercial bank amounting to AED 77.9
million which was obtained to finance the acquisition of a new plant. The facllity carries interest rate of EIBOR plus
a margin, payable in cash on a quarterly basis and is secured against the plant for which facility is obtained. The
facility is repayable in 60 quarterly instalments with the last instalment due on 20 June 2031,

24 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BONDS (MCB)
Mandatory convertible band (MCB)

Liability Equity
cormponent component Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED 000
At 31 December 2016:

MCB 1A (representing 989,944,912 shares at AED 1 each) 54,925 870,575 965,500
MCB 1B (representing 289,626,849 shares at AED 1 each) 27,298 244,850 272,148
MCB 1C {representing 639,862,459 shares at AED 1 each) 60,415 559,951 620,366
MCB 4 (representing 57,605,736 shares at AED 1 each) - 97,100 57,100
Total 1,977,039,956 shares @ AED 1 each 182,638 1,772,476 1,955,114
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24 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BONDS (MCB) continued
Mandatory convertible bond (MCB)
Liability Equity
compenent compaonent Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
At 31 December 2015:

MCB 1A (representing 989,944,912 shares at AED 1 each) 134,428 870,575 1,005,003
MCB 18 (representing 289,626,849 shares at AED 1 each) 38,403 244,850 283,253
MCB 1C (representing 639,862,459 shares at AED 1 each) 85,986 559,951 645,937
MCB 4 (representing 57,605,736 shares at AED 1 each) - 97,100 97,100
Total 1,977,039,956 shares @ AED 1 each 258,817 1,772,476 2,031,293

Liability component of mandatery convertible bonds is analysed in the cansolidated statement of financial position
as follows:

At 31 December At 31 December

2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Current 84,909 84,909
Non-current 97,729 173,908
182,638 258,817
The Group has four series of MCBs in issue,
Mandatory convertible hond MCB-1A
The Group has two MCB1A bonds in issue:
= A mandatory convertible bond (“MCB-1A") was issued on 1 April 2011 in the form of trust certificates for a
total value of AED 635 million, maturing in March 2019: and
s Amandatory convertible bond (“MCB-1A") was issued on 31 December 2012 in the form of trust certificates

for a total value of AED 411 million, maturing in March 2019. This bond was issued as settlement of sub-
ordinated loan facllity Tranche B.

MCB-1A carries a cash coupon of 4% per annum from 1 January 2013 to maturity payable in arrears an a quarterly
basis.

The MCB-1A shall be converted upon maturity into ordinary shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange ratio
of 1.1258. The bond is subordinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

Transaction costs in connection with the issuance of the MCB-1A on inception amounted to AED 10.9 million.

The liability component of MCB-1A amounting to AED 95 million (2015: AED 134 million} net of transaction costs,
represents present value of cash coupon payable till maturity, discounted at a market rate of 4% on inception, which
is determined on the basis of a bond with similar terms and conditions, but without the condition of mandatory
conversion into ordinary shares at the redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds, at inception, from MCB-1A amounting to AED 871 million (2015: AED 871 million)
net of transaction costs, have been recognised as the equity component of MCB-1A.
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24 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BONDS (MCB) continued
Mandatory convertible bond MCB-1B

A mandatory convertible bond (“MCB-1B") was issued en 1 April 2011 in the form of trust certificates for a total
value of AED 1,065 millien, maturing in March 2019,

MCB-1B carries a cash coupon of 4% per annum from 1 January 2013 to maturity payable in arrears on a quarterly
hasis.

The MCB-1B shall be converted upon maturity into ordinary shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange ratio
of 1.1259. The bond is subordinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

Transaction costs In connection with the issuanee of the MCB-18B on inception amounted to AED 18.2 million.

The liability component of MCB-1B amounting to AED 27 million (2015: AED 38 million) net of transaction costs,
represents present value of cash coupon payable during the period from 1 January 2013 till maturity, discounted at
a market rate of 4% at inception, which is determined on the basis of 3 band with similar terms and conditions, but
without the condition of mandatory conversion into ordinary shares at the redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds, at inception, from MCB-1B amounting to AED 245 million (2015: AED 245 million)
net of transaction cost, have been recognised as the equity component of MCB-18B and adjusted for the settlement
in kind of the coupan amounting to AED 144.8 million (2015: AED 144.8 million) relating to the period from inception
to 31 December 2012,

On 7 June 2015, the Shareholders of the Company, at an Ordinary General Assembly, resolved to repurchase a
portion of mandatory convertible bonds (MCB-1B) with a carrying amount of AED 795.9 million at a repurchase price
of AED 1,000 million. The sale and repurchase agreement with the mandatory convertible bond holder was finalised
on 30 June 2015 and consideration was subsequently transferred on 1 July 2015,

In line with the requirement of IFRS, the repurchase price af AED 113 million allocated to the liability component is
determined as the fair value at the date of repurchase based on the present value of coupons payable till maturity
discounted at current market rate of 6.3% per annum. The resulting gain of AED 5.1 million is recorded within other
gains and losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The remainder of the repurchase price of AED 887 million is allacated to the equity component resulting in an
adjustment of AED 209.3 million in equity under other reserves.

Carrying Price
amount allocation Difference
AED 000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
MCB 1B = Liability component 118,099 112,984 5,115
MCE 1B — Equity Component 677,762 887,016 (209,254)
795,861 1,000,000 ~ (204,139)
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24 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BONDS (MCB) continued
Mandatory convertible bond MCB-1C

During 2012, the Group issued mandatory convertible bond ("MCB-1C") in the form of trust certificates for a total
value of AED 720 million, maturing in March 2019.

MCB-1C carries a cash coupon of 4% per annum from 1 January 2013 to 31 March 2019, payable in arrears on a
quarterly basis and will be converted Into ordinary shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange ratio of 1.1259,
The bond is suberdinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

The liability component of MCB-1C amounting to AED 60 million (2015: AED 86 million) represents present value of
cash coupon payable during the period from 1 January 2013 till maturity, discounted at a market rate of 4% at
inception, which is determined on the basis of a bond with similar terms and conditions, but without the condition
of mandatory conversion into ordinary shares at the redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds, at inception, from MCB-1C amounting to AED 560 millien (2015: AED 560 million)
have been recognised as the equity component of MCB-1C,

Mandatory convertible bond MCB-4

A mandatory convertible bond ("MCB-4") was issued on 22 May 2013 In the farm of trust certificates for a total value
of AED 133.9 million maturing in April 2019.

MCB-4 does not carry a coupon. The instrument is convertible any time from now until maturity in 2019 into ordinary
shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange ratio of 1.6856. The bond is subordinated in right of payment to
the claims of creditars of the Company. MCB-4 has therefore been fully recognised as an equity instrument.

In the Annual General Meeting held on 24 March 2014, the shareholders approved a new tranche of MCE 4 to be
issued in the farm of trust certificates maturing in April 2019. The value of the new tranche amounting to AED 97.1
million has been estimated based on a fixed exchange ratio calculated using 1-week value weighted average share
price as on 1 May 2014. All other terms of the new tranche are similar to those of MCB 4 already in issue.

In July 2014, a tranche of mandatory convertible bond (“MCB-4”) with a carrying amount of AED 133.9 million was
converted into 79,426,201 ordinary shares of AED 1 each.

The mandatory convertible bonds MCB 1A, 1B, 1C and MCB 4 have been issued without any pledge or security,

Reconciliation between the amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Manduatory convertible bond (MICB 1A)

Liability Equity

component component Total

AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED 000

Balance at 1 January 2016 134,428 870,575 1,005,003
Accretion expense 4,753 - 4,753
Amartisation of transaction costs 327 - 327
Cash coupons pald (44,583) - (44,583)
Balance at 31 December 2016 94,925 870,575 965,500
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24 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BOND (MCB) continued
Mandatary convertible bond (MCB 1B)
Liability Equity
component component Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Balance at 1 January 2016 38,403 244,850 283,253
Accretion expense 1,380 = 1,390
Amortisation of transaction costs 549 - 543
Cash coupons paid (13,044) - (13,044)
Balance at 31 December 2016 27,298 244,850 272,148
Mandatory convertibie bond (MCB 1C)
Liahility Equity
component component Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Balance at 1 January 2016 85,986 559,951 645,937
Accretion expense 3,071 - 3,071
Amortisation of transaction costs 175 - 175
Cash coupons paid (28,817) - (28,817)
Balance at 31 December 2016 60,415 559,951 620,366
Mandatory convertible bond (MCB 4)
Liability Equity
camponent component Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Balance at 1 January and 31 December - 97,100 97,100
Total balance of MCBs at 31 December 2016 182,638 1,772,476 1,955,114
Total balance of MCBs at 31 December 2015 258,817 1,772,476 2,031,293

62



ﬂl | A p 3
] tabreed
National Central Cooling Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

25 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE
During 2006, the Company entered into a sale and lease back agreement with a third party relating to certain plants
(note 11) for an amount of AED 55.8 million. The lease carries Interest at an effective rate of 9.5% per annum and is

repayable in monthly instalments over a period of 12 years.

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the minimum lease
payments are as follows:

2016 2015
Minimum Present Minimum Present
lease volue of lease volue of
payments payments payments payments
AED 000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Within one year 7,749 7,364 7,749 7,364
After one year but not more than five years 4,536 3,979 12,254 10,320
12,285 11,343 20,003 17,684
Less: amounts representing finance charges (342) - (2,319) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 11,343 11,343 17,684 17,684

The finance lease liability is classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2018 2015

AED 000 AED ‘000

Current 7,364 7,364
Non-current . 3,979 ¢ == 10,320
11,343 17,684

26 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The Company provides for employees’ end of service benefits in respect of its expatriate employees in accordance
with the employees’ contracts of employment, The movements in the provision recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows;

2016 2015

AED 000 AED ‘000

Balance at 1 January 20,625 21,528
Reclassified from/(to) disposal group held for sale (note 18) 451 (451)
Net movement during the year 1,573 (452)
Balance at 31 December 22,649 20,625
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27 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Non-current liabilities
Relating to capital expenditure:
Contractor payable and retentions 15,120 10,154
Others:
Other payables and provisions 117,950 118,392
133,110 128,546
Current liabilities
Relating to capital expenditure:
Contractor payable and retentions 59,955 66,360
Due to a non-controlling interest 100,000 *
Accrued expenses 48,776 53,444
208,731 119,804
Others:
Accounts payable 22,115 42,251
Due to related parties — associates (note 28) 40,584 52,363
Accrued expenses 202,141 182,985
Other payables and provisions 170,082 170,598
434,932 448,197
643,663 568,001

In 2014, the Company has recognised a provision of AED 102 million en an onerous contract with an associate for
the purchase of chilled water related to plants covered under a cooling agreement with a customer. During the year,
the Company has released an amount of AED 0.8 million (2015: AED 5.5 million)

Terms and conditions of the financial liabilities;

Accounts payable and other financial liabilities are non-interest bearing and are normally settled an 60 day terms.

Retentions payable are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in accordance with the terms of the contracts.

For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to note 28.
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent the Government of Abu Dhabi and related departments and institutions (owner of the
majority sharehalder), associated companies, joint ventures, majority shareholder, directors and key management
personnel of the Company, management entities engaged by the Company, and entities controlled, jaintly controlled
or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the
Company's management.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are as follows:

2016 2015
Operating Interest Other Dperating Interest Other
Revenug costs expenis income Revenue costs EEDOARE income
AED'DOD AED'000 AED000 AED'D00 AED000 AED'000 AEL'000 AED'000
Associated companies - 101,001 - 4,929 - 99,260 4,704
Majarity shareholder - - 9,214 - - - 14,735
Assoclate of & majarity sharcholder 118,651 . - - 112,795 - - -
Government related departments
and Institutions 45,446 145,789 44,923 = 44,878 144,897 25,250

Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2016
Accounts
loan Mandatory Accounts Bank payablesand  Interest bearing
recelvable  convertlble bond recelvable balances advences loans
AED'D0D AED'D00 AED000 AEDDOD AED'DOD AED000
Assaclated companies . - 23,315 . 32,300
laint venture - = 5.329 - - -
Majority shareholder (nate 24) - 1,955,114 - - - -
Assoclate of a majarity
shareholder . - 13,815
Other related party . - - = 100,000
Government relatad departments
and institutions - - 3,968 141,003 7,953 1,136,426
1,955,114 46,427 141,003 140313 1,136,428
2018
Adtounts
Loan Mandataory Accounts Bank payables and interest bearing
recelvable  convertible bond receivable Bolances advances Ioans
AEDQ00 AELD'GO0 AERDO0 AEDODD AED'00D AEDD0D
Assaclated companies - - 22,266 - 36,673
Jaint venture 72,278 15,548 -
Majority shareholder [nate 24) - 2,031,293 .
Associate of a majority 8,004
sharehaolder - v
Government related departments 8,051 1,158,027
and institutions - = 73,534 15,650
72,276 2,031,293 53,869 73,534 52,363 1,158,027
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES continued
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are made at agreed terms and conditions approved by management and are analysed
as follows:

Terms and conditions 2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED 000
Loan to a joint venture Interast free, unsecured, settlement in cash - 72,276
Mandatory convertible bond 1A Interest bearing, unsecured, cash coupon 965,500 1,005,003
Mandatory convertible bond 1B Interest bearing, unsecured, cash coupon 272,148 283,253
Mandatory convertible bond 1C Interest bearing, unsecured, cash coupon 620,366 645,937
Mandatory convertible bond 4 Unsecured 97,100 97,100
Accounts receivable Interest free, unsecured, settled over agreed
payment terms 46,427 53,869
Accounts receivable from
associate of a majority Interest free, unsecured, payment terms as
shareholder per agreed payment terms 13,815 8,004
Accounts payable Interest free, unsecured, settled over normal
credit period 32,360 36,673
Advance from a related party Interest free, unsecured, settled on net basis - -
Interest bearing arrangements
and Government related Interest bearing, secured, settled as per terms
institutions of the loan agreement 1,136,426 1,158,027
Accounts receivables with
Gavernment related
departments Interest free, unsecured, settled over normal
and institutions credit period 3,968 8,051
Accounts payables with
Government related Interest free, unsecured, settled over normal
departments and institutions credit period, 7,953 15,690

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended
31 December 2016, amounts owed by related parties with a nominal value of AED 1.7 million (2015: AED 6.2 million)
were impaired and fully provided for. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates,

Other transactions:

(i) In 2015, the Company entered into a sale and repurchase agreement with MDC for the repurchase of a portion
of mandatory convertible bonds (MCB-18) with a carrying amount of AED 795.9 million at a repurchase price
af AED 1,000 million (note 24).

Non-cash transactions:

(i) During the year, capital expenditure incurred by an associate of the majority sharehalder on behalf of the
Group was transferred to the Group amounting to AED 39.1 million and settled against the receivables
(ii) During the year, the Company transferred a loan amounting to AED 72 million previously provided to S&T

District Cooling Company LLC as an additional capital contribution (note 13 and note 15).
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES continued

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED 000
Short-term benefits 6,363 6,204
Employees’ end of service benefits 131 103
6,494 6,307
Number of key management personnel 4 4
29 CONTINGENCIES
Bank guarantees
The bankers have issued guarantees on behalf of the Group as follows:
2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED 000
Performance guarantees 108,418 125,850
Advance payment guarantees 673 1,923
Financial guarantees 2,586 2,586
111,677 130,359

The Company’s share of contingencies of associates and joint ventures as of 31 December 2016 amounted AED 10.8
million (2015; AED 8.3 million). The Company expects no outflow of ecanamic resources and accordingly no provision
has been made in the consolidated financlal statements.

30 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

The authorised capital expenditure contracted for at 31 December 2016 but not provided for amounted to AED 174
million (2015: AED 302 million). The Company’s share of authorised future capital expenditure of associates and joint
ventures at 31 December 2016 amounted to AED 16 million (2015: AED 114.9 million).

Operating lease commitments - lessor

The Company enters into cooling service agreements with its eustomers for the provision of chilled water. Some of
these agreements qualify to be classified as a lease based on IFRIC 4 and are accounted for as an operating lease
based on IAS 17 as the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to the customer.
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30 COMMITMENTS continued
Operating lease commitments — lessor continued
These non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between 15 and 30 years, All leases include a clause to enable

upward revision of the rental charge on a periodic basis according to prevailing market conditions.

Future minimum rentals receivable under nen-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

2016 2015

AED ‘000 AED 000

Within one year 149,008 132,366
After one year but not more than five years 793,772 698,655
More than five years 3,540,423 3,386,008
4,483,203 4,217,119

Included in revenue is an amount of AED 138.1 millien (2015: 134.2 million) related to operating lease income
recognised during the year.

Included in operating lease commitments is an amount of AED 3,208 million relating to an associate of a majority
shareholder, a related party (2015; AED 3,170 million).

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise interest bearing loans and horrowings,
obligations under finance lease, mandatory convertible bond - liability component, trade payables and due to related
parties. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group's operations and construction
activity. The Group has various financial assets such as finance lease receivables, trade receivables, due from related
parties and cash and term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group enters into derivative transactions to manage the interest rate risk arising from the Group’s sources of
finance. It is, and has been throughout 2016 and 2015 the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives shall be
undertaken.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrumeant will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise the following types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, finance lease receivables,
finance lease liability and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating

interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all
constant and on the basis of the hedge designations in place at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES continued
Market risk continued
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

¢  The statement of financial position sensitivity relates to derivatives instruments,

¢ The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in
respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December 2016
and 2015 including the effect of hedge accounting.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s cash flow exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations and deposits with floating interest rates.

To manage the cash flow risk relating to its variable interest borrowings, the Company enters into interest rate
swaps, in which the Company agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable
rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed upon notional principal amount. These swaps are
designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. At 31 December 2016, after taking into account the effect of
interest rate swaps, approximately 34% of the Group’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest (2015: 37%).

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit for one year (through the impact on term deposits and un hedged
portion of loans and borrowings).

Effect on profit
AED ‘000
2016
+100 increase in basis points (16,427)
-100 decrease In basis points 16,427
2015
+100 increase in basis points (14,387)
-100 decrease in basis points 14,387

The impact on equity relating to derivatives designated as effective cash flow hedges could not be determined in the
absence of information frem counter party banks.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The majority of transactions and balances are in either UAE Dirham or US Dollar or currencies that are pegged to US
Dollar. As the UAE Dirham is pegged to the US Daollar, balances in US Dollar are not considered ta represent significant
foreign currency risk.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES continued
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is expased to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for
trade receivables, amounts due from related parties and finance lease receivables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions and ether financial instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all custamers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongeing basis. The maximum exposure relating to trade receivables and finance lease receivables
is the carrying amount as disclosed in notes 17 and 16. The Group's three largest customers, including a related
party, account for approximately 41% of outstanding trade and related party receivable balances at 31 December
2016 (2015: 3 customers 46%). Amounts due in respect of finance lease receivables are from four custamers (2015:
three customers).

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and term deposits
and certain derivative instruments, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the caunterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Group seeks to limit its credit risk to
banks by only dealing with reputable banks.

Liguidity risk

The Group manitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a cash flow model. This toal considers tha maturity of its
financial assets (accounts receivable, finance lease receivables and other financial assets) and projected cash
outflows from operations and capital projects,

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of term
loans,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 December 2016 based on
undiscounted payments and current market interest rates.

an Lessthan 3 3rai2 1to§
demand months maonths Yeors 5 years Total
AED'0DD AED'D0Q AED'DOC AED000 AED'000 AED'OOO
At 31 December 2016
Mandatory convertible bond - 21,610 64,833 108,047 - 194,490
Interest bearing loans and borrowings . 36,833 317,954 3,290,287 305,302 3,950,376
Obligations undar finance leases - 1,937 5,812 4,519 - 12,268
Accounts and retention payable, due to
ralated parties and other financial liabilities - 217,699 301,284 15,120 - 534,103
278,079 689,883 3,417,973 305,302 4,691,237
At 31 December 2015
Mandatory canvertible bond - 21,610 64,833 194,498 - 280,941
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 30,827 304,273 1,434,454 1,958,035 3,727,589
Obligations under finance leases - 1,937 5,812 12,254 . 20,003
Accounts and retention payable, due to
related parties and other financial liabilitios - 160,064 225,546 - - 385,610
214,438 600,464 1,641,208 1,958,035 4,414,143
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES continued

Capital management

The primary abjective of the Group’s capital management is to achieve strong credit metrics and healthy capital

ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in ecanomic conditions.
There are no regulatory imposed requirements on the level of share capital which the Group has not met.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group
includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, mandatory convertible bond — liability cemponent,
obligations under finance lease, less cash and term depasits. Capital includes total equity excluding non-controlling

interests less cumulative changes in fair value of derivatives.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Mandatory convertible bond and

= liability component

Obligation under finance lease

Less: cash and term deposits

Net debt

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Adjustment for cumulative changes in fair values of derivatives

Total capital
Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

32 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

32.1 Fair values of financial instruments

2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
3,229,899 2,997,307
182,638 258,817
11,343 17,684
3,423,880 3,273,808
(389,961) (176,969)
3,033,919 3,096,839
4,367,223 4,160,367
29,551 32,119
4,396,774 4,192,486
7,430,693 7,289,325
41% 42%

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values at
the reporting date except for finance lease receivables, mandatory eonvertible bond, fixed rate loan and obligations
under finance lease with fixed interest rates. Set out below is a comparison of carrying amounts and fair values of

such instruments:

AED ‘000

Financial assets

Finance lease receivables 3,013,485

Financial liabilities
Obligations under finance lease
Mandatory convertible bond

— liahility component 182,638

11,343

Carrying Amount

Falr Volue
2015 2016 2015
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED '000
2,963,096 3,305,998 3,273,998
17,684 12,385 19,999
258,817 187,073 262,311
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3z FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT continued
32.2 Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities is as
follows:

2016 2015
3 i1
Date of Decembar December
valuation 2018 Level 1 Level 2 level 3 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AID000 AED'DD0 AED P00 AED'DO0 AED'DD0 AFDDO0 AED'000 AED'000
_— T,
Liabilities measured at falr
value
Interest rate swaps 3,286 - 3,285 - 2,898 . 2804
Assats Tor which falr values
are disclosed
Finance lease recelvables 3,305,958 - - 3,305,938 3,273,998 = - 3,273,991
Uiabilities far which fair —
values are diselasad
Obligations. under finance
Iz 13,385 - - 12,385 19,999 - . 19,989
Mandatory convertible
bond - llability campanent 187,073 = - 187,073 262,311 = - 262,311
193,358 s - 159,458 282,310 = . 282,310
_—

During the reporting years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers Into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value:

. Asset held for sale (land) were valued based on an evaluation perfarmed by an accredited external,
independent valuer, applying a valuation model, recommended by the International Valuation Standards
Committee.

. The Group enters into derivative financial Instruments with various banks and financial institutions with

investment grade credit ratings. Derlvatives valued using valuation technigues with market observable
inputs are interest rate swaps. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include swap models,
using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying commodity.

32.3 Hedging activities
Cash flow hedges

The Group s exposed to variability in future Interest cash flows on interest bearing loans and berrawings which bear
interest at a variable rate.
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32 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT continued

323 Hedging activities continued

In order to reduce its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on the interest bearing loans and borrewings the
Company has entered into interest rate swaps with counter-party banks designated as effective cash flow hedges
for notional amounts that mirror the drawdown and repayment schedule of the loans. The notional amount of the

interest rate swaps was AED 1,819 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: AED 1,546 million).

A schedule indicating the maturity profile of the derivative related assets and liabilities as at 31 December is as
follows:

Within 1
year 1-3 years Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
2016
Cash inflows (assets) 30,288 33,300 63,678
Cash outflows (liabilities) (41,328) (36,211) (77,539)
Net cash outflow (11,040) (2,821) (13,861)
2015:
Cash inflows (assets) 26,095 35,074 61,169
Cash outflows (liabilities) (33,448) (34,602) (68,050)
Net cash outflow (7,353) 472 (6,881)

All derivative contracts are with counterparty banks in UAE,

33 Comparative infarmation

Certain comparative figures were reclassified to conform with the current year presentation. Such reclassifications
have no effect on the results or the equity of the Group.
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